
  

 
       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       January 3, 2005      Page 1 

 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF LYON 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
MEETING MINUTES 
January 3, 2005 

 
Approved as submitted February 7, 2005. 

DATE:   January 3, 2005 
TIME:  7:00 PM 
PLACE:  58000 Grand River 
 
1. Call to Order:  Supervisor Young called the meeting to order at 7:01 PM. 
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
3. Roll Call:  Present: Lannie Young, Supervisor 

     Patricia Carcone, Treasurer 
     Pamela Johnson, Clerk 
     Dan Cash, Trustee 
     Brent Hemker, Trustee 
     John Hicks, Trustee 
     Troy Schilling, Trustee  

 
                   Also Present:  Philip Seymour, Township Attorney  
      Chris Olson, Township Superintendent 
      Chris Doozan, Township Planner 
      Leslie Zawada, Township Engineer 
      Les Cash, Fire Chief 
      Larry Phillips, Building Official 
     
    Guests:  25 
 
4. APPROVAL OF THE CONSENT AGENDA 
  - Approval of Regular Meeting Minutes of December 6, 2004 
  - Approval of Planning Services Contract 
  - Approval of Legal Services Contract 
  - Approval of Disbursements 
  - Financial Report for November, 2004 
  - Engineer Monthly Report 
  - Earth Tech WWTP Operations Report 
  - Monthly Department Reports (Fire, Zoning Officer, Building and Sheriff) 
   

Mr. Olson noted that the following needs to be added to the Consent Agenda: 
 - Spark Plug Group Function at the park 
 
Some typographical errors were noted for the Recording Secretary to fix on the December 6, 2004 
meeting minutes. 
 
Ms. Carcone made a motion to approve the consent agenda as amended.  Mr. Hicks supported 
the motion. 

 
 Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: Johnson, Young, Cash, Schilling, Hemker, Carcone, Hicks 
    Nays: None  



  

 
       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       January 3, 2005      Page 2 

 

 
 Motion approved. 

 
5.  ANNOUNCEMENTS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
 a.  Langan Property Matters 
 Mr. Seymour updated the Board on the status of this issue. 
 
 Mr. Hicks reminded the public of the upcoming open house that the Board is having on Thursday, 
 January 6, 2005. 
 
 Mr. Hicks noted that at the last meeting Bill Ritter discussed the flooding problem on Pontiac Trail. 
 He stated that he has looked at this area and has asked questions.  He stated that he has been 
 assured that the water is being released at an agricultural rate and is not currently encroaching 
 on any setbacks.  He stated that they will keep monitoring this. 
 
 Ms. Carcone informed the residents that Cindy Dagenhardt, Milford Treasurer, lost her father over 
 the week-end and that she heard that Don Green had a heart attack today. 
 
 Mr. Young stated that at the public portion of the meeting last month a question was asked about 
 the status of the taping of the meetings.  He stated that since then they have had a person in to 
 review the amount of cameras and the costs.  He stated that they do not yet have the costs back 
 yet.  He stated that he will keep the residents posted as to their progress with this issue. 
 
6.   CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
 
 Jeff Potter, 1099 Stable Lane, Oakland County Commissioner, updated the Board on what is  
 happening in the County. 
 
 Darcy Hollon, 24300 Martindale Road, discussed the 27.7 Metro Park acres that is being proposed 
 for rezoning.  She questioned that if the land is sold, can the Township’s money be recouped. 
 
 Robin Allen, 28550 Tindale Trail, thanked the Board for their efforts in getting the meetings taped. 
 He questioned the status of the open doors at Continental and the lawsuit against the Township 
 which was filed by Continental. 
 
 Chris Roberts, 56645  McKenzi Lane, noted that the comments he made at the end of the last 

meeting were missing from the minutes. 
  

7. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
 The following items were requested to be added to the agenda: 
  - Starting Time for Board Meetings (Unfinished Business) 
  - 12.1 Zoning Ordinance Discussion (New Business) 
  - Library Update (New Business)  
 
 Ms. Carcone requested that the December 6, 2004 meeting minutes be removed from the 
Consent 

Agenda and to not be approved due to the comments made by Chris Roberts. 
 
 Mr. Hemker made a motion to approve the agenda with the changes discussed.  Ms. Carcone  

supported the motion. 
 
  Voice Vote:  Ayes: All 
     Nays: None 



  

 
       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       January 3, 2005      Page 3 

 

 
  Motion approved. 
 
8. Public Hearing for Reallocation of CDBG Funds from 2002 
 
 Mr. Doozan explained that from the 2002 program year they have $7,438 in unused funds.  He  
 stated that they would like to reprogram these funds to minor home repair.  He stated that they 
 do have an applicant of low/moderate income who needs a new septic field and could make 
 good use of this money. 
 
 Mr. Young opened the public hearing at 7:24 PM.  There were no public comments.  He then  
 closed the public hearing at 7:24 PM. 
 
9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
 a.  Resolution to Reallocate 2002 CDBG Funds  
 

Ms. Carcone made a motion to approve the resolution to reprogram $7,438 of CDBG funds from 
planning to minor home repair.  Ms. Johnson supported the motion. 
 
Mr. Young asked if there were any comments from the Board.  There were none. 

 
  Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: Cash, Young, Carcone, Schilling, Johnson, Hemker, Hicks 
     Nays: None 
 
  Motion approved. 
 
 b.  Reconsideration of Acceptance of Donation Documents for Woodwind Well (Tabled from 
      November and December) 
 

Mr. Olson stated that they did receive an e-mail requesting this issue be reconsidered.  Mr. Young 
explained that this issue will not be discussed this evening, it is only on the agenda to see if the  
Board wishes to reconsider their action at a future meeting.  

 
 Mr. Hicks made a motion to reconsider the Woodwind Well donation documents.  Mr. Young  

supported the motion. 
 
Mr. Young asked if there were any comments regarding this.  Mr. Cash thanked Mr. Olson for his 
research on this issue.  He felt that Mr. Olson did an excellent job on this.  He stated that he would  
like to see the Board re-open this and maybe put to rest the water system with South Lyon Schools. 
 
Mr. Hicks stated that when this came before the Board at the last meeting he was not aware of  
all the information that Mr. Olson researched and put together.  He felt that it is very important that 
they have dialogue with these people. 
 
Mr. Olson stated that at the time that this came up, he was not aware of all the loose ends.  He  
noted that there are a number of problems in this whole situation that are really not the Township’s 
problems, but the developer’s.  He stated that the Township is involved because of the nature of  
the donation.  He stated that any motion for reconsideration does not mean that the Board is 
accepting the issue, they are accepting the ability to vote on this in the future. 

 
  Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: Cash, Young, Johnson, Schilling, Hicks 
     Nays: Hemker, Carcone 
 



  

 
       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       January 3, 2005      Page 4 

 

  Motion approved. 
 

c.  Impervious Surface Standards – Second Reading and Proposed Adoption of Text Amendments 
     to Zoning Ordinance (Tabled from December). 
 
Mr. Doozan asked the Board to table this issue again for one month.  He noted that he has not had 
time to put his recommendation together yet. 
 
Mr. Cash made a motion to table the second reading of the Impervious Surface Standard Text 
Amendments for one month.  Ms. Johnson supported the motion. 

 
 Voice Vote:  Ayes: Cash, Hemker, Hicks, Johnson, Schilling, Young 
    Nays: Carcone 
  
 Motion approved. 

 
d.  Starting Time for Board Meetings 

 
 Mr. Young stated that they began discussions of this issue at the last meeting but decided to hold 
 it over until this meeting in order to get public input. 
 
 Mr. Cash proposed that they start the meetings one hour earlier in order to give the Board more 
 time to discuss business.  He felt that they sometimes rush through issues at the end of the  
 meetings because of the late hour. 
 

Mr. Cash made a motion to start the Township Board of Trustee meetings at 6:00 PM.  Mr. Hemker  
supported the motion. 
 
Mr. Young asked if there were any public comments. 
 
Darcy Hollon, 24300 Martindale Road, stated that 6:00 PM would be very difficult for some of the 
residents to make.  She felt that the meetings should remain at 7:00 PM. 
 
Robin Allen, 28550 Tindale Trail, concurred that 6:00 PM is too early.  He felt that residents who 
commute would not be able to make the meetings.   
 
Chris Roberts, 56645 McKenzi Lane, concurred that 6:00 PM is too early and that the meetings  
should remain at 7:00 PM. 
 
Mr. Hemker stated that at the last meeting he wanted to hear public comments regarding this 
issue and that is why it was tabled.   
 
Ms. Carcone stated that she would love to have the meetings begin at 6:00 PM because she is 
here anyway.  She stated that she is concerned with the residents ability to make it at 6:00 PM 
because of commuting.  She felt that the start time should remain at 7:00 PM. 
 
Mr. Cash felt that for one meeting a month they could adjust their schedule to be here one hour 
earlier. 
 
Mr. Schilling stated that they are here to serve the public and appreciates the comments 

regarding 
this issue. 
 
 Voice Vote:  Ayes: Cash 



  

 
       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       January 3, 2005      Page 5 

 

    Nays: Carcone, Hemker, Hicks, Johnson, Schilling, Young 
 
 Motion failed. 

 
10. NEW BUSINESS 
 
 a.  Martindale Road Paving and Water Main Special Assessment District – Contractor Award 
      Recommendation 

 
Ms. Zawada briefly explained the project.  She stated that the bonds for the project have already 
been sold.  She stated that they are recommending that the contract for the work be awarded 
to Oakland Excavating Company for the amount of $633,410.45.  She noted that Oakland 
Excavating Company’s references have been checked and that Giffels-Webster has worked with 
this company in the past.  She stated that Oakland Excavating Company has also performed 
work in Lyon Township with the Road Commission. 
 
Mr. Young asked if there were any public comments.  There were none. 
 
Mr. Cash made a motion to approve the bid by Oakland Excavating Company in the amount of 
$633,410.45 for this project.  Ms. Carcone supported the motion. 
 
Mr. Young asked if there were any comments or debate.  Mr. Schilling noted that it indicates that 
similar project experience is needed to complete this.  He questioned if it was of the same scale. 
Ms. Zawada responded that it is.  She stated that they have not only done paving work but have 
also done underground work.  Mr. Schilling questioned if there is a timeline for completion of this. 
Ms. Zawada responded that she is not positive as to what the estimate was but usually for a  
project of this size there would be 60 days to substantial completion once the contractor has been 
given notice to proceed.  She stated that notice is given anytime within 30 days after the contract 
has been awarded by the Township Board.  She further explained the process. 
 
Mr. Olson noted that there is only one payer involved in this SAD, it is Jeff Appel.   
 
Mr. Hemker stated that the bids were received and opened in September.  He questioned if it was 
indicated in the bid that the project would not begin until now.  Ms. Zawada responded that there 
were some issues that came up.  She noted that the contractors did extend their bid prices through 
now.  She stated that it does not affect the contract time, only the bid time.  Mr. Hemker stated  
that the bids have been extended.  Ms. Zawada stated that this is correct.  She stated that the bid 
have been extended. 
 
Mr. Young stated that he went through all the information and felt that they got a really good bid. 
 
 Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: Young, Carcone, Hemker, Hicks, Schilling, Cash, Johnson   
    Nays: None 
 
 Motion approved. 

 
b.  Resolution of Indemnification of Township Board Members, Officers and Employees 

  
 Mr. Seymour explained that the start of each new Township Board it has been a practice to  
 present a resolution to indemnify the Board members, Officers and Township employees from any 
 civil action, not only to defend but to also pay providing they are acting within the scope their 
 employment.  If they are acting within the scope of their employment, then the Township would 
 indemnify.  He briefly reviewed the resolution. 
 



  

 
       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       January 3, 2005      Page 6 

 

Mr. Hemker made a motion to adopt the Resolution of Indemnification of Township Board  
Members, Officers and Employees.  Mr. Schilling supported the motion. 
 
Mr. Young asked if there were any public comments.  There were none.  He then asked if there  
were any comments from the Board.  There were none. 
 
 Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: Schilling, Hicks, Cash, Carcone, Johnson, Young, Hemker 
    Nays: None 
 
 Motion approved. 

 
c.  Appointment of Fire Inspector and Rate of Pay 

 
Mr. Young stated that they received a letter from Chief Cash with regard to the four candidates 
who were interviewed for this position.   
 
Mr. Olson stated that he concurs with Chief Cash’s recommendation of Don Collick for this  
position.  He stated that the rate of pay would be the entry level pay of $38,000 per year, which 
will be increased to the standard rate of pay once Mr. Collick receives certification.  He noted 
that this will come back before the Board once certification is received.  He stated that all  
candidates interviewed well and all have something to offer, but Mr. Collick came out on top.   
He congratulated Mr. Collick. 
 
Mr. Hicks made a motion to approve the appointment of Don Collick as the Township’s Fire 
Inspector.  Ms. Carcone supported the motion. 
 
Mr. Young asked if there were any public comments.  There were none.  He then asked if the Board 
had any comments. 
 
Ms. Carcone noted that the benefits don’t start until 90 days after start time. 
 
Mr. Young stated that he was part of the interview process and wanted to commend Mr. Collick 
and all the other candidates.  He stated that any one of the candidates would have made a 

good 
Fire Inspector. 
 
 Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: Carcone, Cash, Young, Hemker, Hicks, Schilling, Johnson 
    Nays: None 
 
 Motion approved. 
 

 d.  Development Agreement Proposal for 27.7+ acre property located on Grand River between 
      Martindale Road and I-96 
  

Mr. Olson felt that they need to get some insight from the Township Attorney and the Township 
Planner, who both have had an opportunity to look over the documentation. 
 
Mr. Seymour stated that he is not certain that the matter should be before the Board.  He felt that 
the procedure, under the ordinance, should go before the Planning Commission.  He stated that if 
the thought is that this could be under the recently enacted State Stature for contract zoning, then 
this is a possibility.  He stated that what has to happen first is that the Township has to adopt an 
ordinance implementing the State Statute and the terms and conditions under which the Township 
wants to proceed under this.  He stated that if the applicant wants to make a presentation to the 
Board, he is not sure as to whether or not the Trustees have the right to act on this tonight.  He  



  

 
       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       January 3, 2005      Page 7 

 

stated that he spoke with Mr. Quinn who indicated that an ordinance probably would not be  
ready to be passed until sometime in March.  He briefly discussed how the contract zoning would 
work.  He stated that this is a recently enacted statute and no one really has any guidance as to 
what it really is. 
 
Ralph Stoy, RBS Company, stated that he believes that he did what he was supposed to do in 

order 
to move this along.  He stated that he felt that as he was listening to the comments by the Board  
and the Planning Commission, he felt that they were relatively in favor of this type of unit  
development.  He stated that they would like to get some approval on the possibility of this  
development being acceptable to the Township before they began spending too much more 
money in terms of engineering, planning, etc.   
 
Mr. Hicks made a motion to postpone the development agreement for up to 60 days for the 27.7 
acre parcel located at I-96 and Grand River between Martindale and Kent Lake Roads.  Mr. Cash  
supported the motion. 
 
Mr. Young asked if there were any comments.  Mr. Olson questioned if the Planner could make 
comments.  Mr. Seymour noted that as of right now there is not an ordinance dealing with contract 
zoning.   
 
Mr. Young stated that this is a new situation for all of us, contract zoning versus development 
agreement.  He stated that in the past, before this statute was passed, contract zoning was illegal. 
He stated that the contractor came to the Board with this and was informed that the Board would 
like to see what is going to be put on this property and asked for some type of a development 
agreement.  He stated that while all this was taking place and these talks were going on, the State 
passed the law.  He stated that this puts the Township in the situation that if they don’t want to go 
back through the whole process using the Planning Commission and to help the developer  
expedite this process, they have been informed that the Township needs to adopt something in an 
ordinance form to cover the new law that was enacted.  He stated that with the motion to  
postpone, it allows them to make comments to the developer.  He stated that he looks at this as  
more of a conceptual and anybody can comment as to whether they like it or not in order to give 
the developer some direction as to what he can do.  He stated that as a Board they cannot say 
“Yes or No” to this per comments from Mr. Seymour.  He stated that when they are able to enact  
this, he is in favor of this project.   
 
Mr. Hemker felt that this should go back to the Planning Commission.  He stated that if they were 
coming in for a regular PD, it would go to the Planning Commission before it comes to the Board. 
He stated that even if there is going to be some sort of contract zoning or an agreement, it should 
go to the Planning Commission first. 
 
Mr. Cash questioned what the procedure would be for the new ordinance.  Mr. Seymour  
responded that he could not answer this at this time.  Mr. Olson noted that Lyon Township may be 
one of the first communities dealing with this type of situation.  Mr. Cash asked Mr. Doozan what he 
felt that the procedure should be.  Mr. Doozan stated that it should start at the Planning 
Commission level and then proceed up to the Board level.  He stated that this is the procedure 

that 
they follow with everything else and did not feel that they should deviate from this. 
 
Mr. Doozan briefly discussed some of the issues that need to be resolved with the proposed  
development agreement. 
 
Ms. Carcone stated that she was on fire when she read the part about the bike path.  She noted  
that they spent over six years putting together the trail system.  She stated that she was actually 



  

 
       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       January 3, 2005      Page 8 

 

surprised to see this issue back in the Board’s packets and felt that it should go back to the 
Planning 

Commission. 
 
Mr. Hicks stated that conceptually he feels that it is an appropriate use of the property.  He stated 
that he feels that this proposed development has changed substantially since it was at the  
Planning Commission level, therefore, he felt that the whole plan should go back to the Planning  
Commission. 
 
Mr. Schilling stated that from a concept standpoint he discussed the density.  He stated that just 
because a neighboring zoning is more, it doesn’t necessarily mean that this property has to have 
the same or more density.  He stated that he is very concerned with density. 
 
Mr. Young stated that March was mentioned, which he felt is unacceptable.  He felt that they  
should move forward with this and asked that Mr. Doozan get together with Mr. Quinn and  
Mr. Olson to get the process moving.  Mr. Seymour stated that they will do their best. 
 
Mr. Hemker questioned if the motion is to postpone the development agreement proposal.   
Mr. Young stated that it would be for up to 60 days.  Mr. Hemker stated that they denied the 
rezoning and questioned if this would be a new application.  Mr. Young indicated that this is 
correct. 
 
Mr. Young asked if there were any public comments. 
 
Jim Hamilton, 24200 Martindale Road, stated that with regard to the contract zoning just passed by 
the State and listening to the comments tonight, he felt that there are still a lot of open questions. 
He stated that he doubted that this would be completed within 60 days.  He stated that when this 
applicant was before the Planning Commission it was suggested that they put together a planned 
development and come back to the Planning Commission.  He stated that the applicant insisted 
on a vote that night.  He stated that he felt that the developer should come back to the Planning 
Commission, which would probably be faster than the contract zoning ordinance. 
 
Darcy Hollon, 24300 Martindale Road, stated that she believes that everybody has a right to  
develop their property.  She stated that she does not believe that they have an unconditional right 
for this particular property because it was purchased with tax payer money.  She stated that she is 
questioning if they even have the right to develop the property.  She again questioned if there is  
any way that the Township can recoup their money.  She questioned if there is anybody that she 
can contact at the State level about this.  Mr. Young responded that they will get a number for her. 
 
Wayne Fedders, Real Estate Consultant for HCMA, explained how HCMA works with regard to their 
parks and open space.  He stated that this particular piece of property is not a useful piece of  
property for the park system because it has been truncated by the expressway.  He stated that it 
has been off the tax rolls for many, many years.  He noted that it will now come back onto the 
tax rolls and it will contribute tax dollars.  He stated that with regard to recouping tax dollars that 
may have been collected through the years, he does not know of any process like this.   
 
Mr. Olson questioned what will happen with the proceeds from the sale of this property.   
Mr. Fedders responded that the proceeds will go into a land acquisition budget that the HCMA will 
use for acquiring productive park property.  He noted that in recent years some of these funds 

have 
gone for the development of the Huron Meadows Park and Golf Course in Green Oak Township.   
He stated that any proceeds that come from the sale of any land that is owned by HCMA go into 
the land acquisition budget and cannot be used for any other purpose except land acquisition. 
 



  

 
       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       January 3, 2005      Page 9 

 

Ms. Carcone stated that she feels the same way Ms. Hollon does.  She stated that HCMA actually 
condemn property in Lyon Township and took it from the residents for the park and are now selling 
the property.  She stated that she feels bad that HCMA did not come to the Township to discuss 
this.  Mr. Fedders stated that HCMA staff members and himself have met with Lyon Township staff 
members, Chris Olson and Chris Doozan.  He stated that this has been occurring for over the past 
two years or more. 
 
Mr. Young re-stated the motion for the Board. 
 
 Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: Young, Johnson, Hicks, Cash, Schilling 
    Nays: Carcone, Hemker 
 
 Motion approved. 
 
Mr. Stoy questioned what the postponement means and what does he have to do now.   
Mr. Young responded that they need to get together with the Planner  and Attorney in order to 
give the developer the best direction.  He stated that they do want to work with the developer. 

 
 e.  Levy Properties Planned Development 
  
 Mr. Doozan stated that they have an agreement with the Levy property, which dates back a  
 number of years.  He stated that the agreement calls for the Levy property to complete 
 reclamation within a certain period of time.  He stated that the agreement calls for Levy Company 
 to disclose their planned development plans within a year after reclamation is completed. 
 
 Steve Weiner, Levy Company, stated that what he is really here tonight for is to ask permission not 
 to develop their property.  He stated that he has three specific objectives to discuss tonight: 
  1.  review the basic elements of the agreement that they entered into in 1998; 
  2.  talk about the status of the property today; 
  3.  propose how to address the matter at hand. 
 Using displayed aerial photos of the property, he discussed the three objectives. 
 
 Mr. Weiner stated that they are not really ready to propose a planned development yet.  He noted 
 that they really don’t have the answers to all the questions proposed on the planned development 
 application yet.  He felt that there is a potential to amend the agreement with the Township and 
 re-affirm their commitment to the Township that they do want to develop this property as  
 residential and residential related uses.  He felt that they should possibly consider having some sort 
 of annual meeting to discuss this so that they can all be current as to what is going on with this 
 property.  He stated that they feel that they have met their oral obligations in terms of reclamation 
 of this property.  He stated that they are relatively complaint free with what is happening on this 
 property.  He stated that with the Board’s approval he would like to hire one of their Attorneys to 
 get together with Mr. Seymour and Mr. Quinn to draft something and then they can come back to 
 discuss this further.  
 
 Mr. Hemker made a motion to agree to have Levy Company come back and present an  

agreement between Lyon Township and Lyon Sand and Gravel outlining the details of the new 
agreement.  Mr. Hicks supported the motion. 
 
Mr. Young asked if there were any comments.  Mr. Hemker stated that he is not one to force 
someone to develop their land.  He stated that when he was on the Planning Commission he  
toured the property and feels that the reclamation looks great.  He stated that the property is not 
an eyesore.  He stated that the land looks good now, vacant with a nice lake. 
 
Ms. Carcone stated that she would like Levy Company to keep in mind that the Township is in need 



  

 
       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       January 3, 2005      Page 10 

 

of some property for a third Fire Station.  She stated that she concurs with Mr. Hemker’s comments. 
 
Ms. Johnson questioned what time period might be covered with an addendum.  She questioned if 
there is any projections.  Mr. Weiner responded that it would probably make more sense if they set 
up an agreed upon schedule to meet rather than say that it has to be developed by a certain  
date. 
 
Mr. Schilling questioned if the motion should indicate a time period as to when the Attorneys should 
get together and have this revised.  Mr. Weiner stated that he believed that they could have an 
addendum to the Board within 60 days. 
 
Mr. Hemker amended his motion to indicate that this should be done within 60 days.  Mr. Hicks  
supported the amendment to the motion. 
 
Mr. Cash questioned if the applicant would be willing to pay for the Township Consultants in order 
to get the agreement done.  Mr. Weiner responded that they would be willing within reason. 
 
Mr. Hemker amended his motion to include that the applicant is to pay, within reason, the fees of 
the Township Consultants.  Mr. Hicks supported the motion. 
 
John Bell, 23113 Currie Road, stated that he concurs with Ms. Carcone’s comments regarding land 
for a Fire Station.  He stated that they should also think about land for a Library. 
 
Les Cash, 29631 Milford Road, stated that he has been listening to comments for thirty years.  He 
stated that there has been talk about what is going to be done, but he has yet to see anything 
happen.  He questioned where it all ends. 

 
  Voice Vote:  Ayes: All 
     Nays: None 
 
  Motion approved. 
 
 f.  Elkow Farms PD – Architectural Guidelines 
 
 Mr. Doozan reviewed the comments indicated in the McKenna Associates, Inc. letter dated 
 December 16, 2004 regarding this issue. 
 
 Ray Couisneau, representing Ivanhoe-Huntley Homes and Hi-Tech, stated that the standards  
 indicated are minimum standards.  He stated that they intend to build on a higher level.  He  
 stated that the condominium/duplexes will be 1,500 square foot minimum to over 2,000 square  
 feet with a price range of the mid-$200,000 and above.  The 90’ lots will have at least 2,000 square 
 feet minimum with a price range of low $300,000 and above.  The 100’ lots will have at least 2,400 
 square feet minimum to over 3,000 square feet with a price range of $450,000 and above. 
 
 Mr. Couisneau stated that with regard to the comments made by Mr. Doozan, he did not feel that 
 they have any issues with them.  He stated that they do not have a problem going back to 1,700 
 square feet for the ranch model, as indicated in an earlier draft.  He stated that they don’t have 
 a problem with 2,200 square feet for the minimum of a two story home.  He stated that with respect 
 to aluminum siding, they have no intention of using aluminum siding.  With regard to the roof pitch, 
 they don’t have a problem with the 10/12 pitch. 
 
 Mr. Couisneau stated that they would modify the draft and re-submit it to Mr. Doozan. 
 
 Mr. Seymour stated that the Board could conditionally approve this and Mr. Doozan would make 



  

 
       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       January 3, 2005      Page 11 

 

 sure that the architectural guidelines submitted do actually contain the changes discussed this 
 evening.  
 
 Mr. Young made a motion to approve the architectural standards for the Elkow Farms Planned 
 Development as presented in McKenna’s letter with the issues pertaining to minimum square 
 footages of 1,700 for ranches, 2,200 for two story and 1,400 for the duplex/condominium and  
 also with the roof pitch being 10/12 and that no aluminum siding will be used and the other 
 standards outlined in the December 16, 2004 letter pertaining to the percentage of brick and 
 stone.  The final draft meeting these restrictions shall be approved by the Township Planner. 
 Mr. Hicks supported the motion. 
 
 Mr. Young asked if there were any public comments.  There were none.  He then asked if there 
 were any comment from the Board. 
 
 Mr. Hemker stated that he does not want to approve anything with conditions.  He stated that he 
 would like to see the whole document before he approves it.  He stated that the developer was 
 given a lot with this development and he was not in favor of what they got.  He stated that it now 
 seems that they want to come back and re-do the commitments on their side. 
 
 Ms. Carcone stated that she concurs with Mr. Hemker’s comments. 
 
 Mr. Young stated that he agreed with Mr. Hemker until he heard Mr. Couisneau’s comments.  He 
 stated that if he understands this correctly, Mr. Couisneau agreed to everything that was in the 
 McKenna Associates, Inc. letter.  He stated that based on the presentation and if the developer is 
 willing to do what the originally said they would do, then he does not have a problem with this. 
 
 Mr. Schilling noted that McKenna’s letter is dated December 16, 2004 and that they have received 
 two copies of the architectural standards since then, neither of which reflect the information that 
 was in the McKenna letter. 
 
 Mr. Couisneau stated that he appreciates the comments.  He stated that these are minimum  
 standards and that they intend to build above these standards.  He stated that traditionally when 
 they adopt architectural standards, whether it is a PD or not, they always go down to a lower level, 
 which would provide them with a level of protection.  He stated that this allows the developer to  
 have flexibility.  He stated that they do not intend to build minimum standards. 
 
  Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: Johnson, Hicks, Cash, Young 
     Nays: Hemker, Carcone, Schilling 
 
  Motion approved. 
 

g.  Election System Resolution 
 
Ms. Johnson stated that they have a resolution that requires that they provide proof of authority for 
entering into a Grant agreement with the State for the Help America Vote Act.  This is for purchase 
of new voting equipment.  She stated that their current voting equipment was purchased originally 
in 1991 as part of a County purchase plan.  She stated that they are in need of updating the 
election machines.  She stated that the machinery has been improved to make it lightweight and 
much more versatile.   
 
Ms. Johnson stated that this resolution will allow the County to act as grant agreement agents for 
the Township for a County purchase.  She stated that they are looking at vendors for this  
equipment.  She stated that they are hoping to have the first purchase in 2005.  She stated that 
what she has heard from other County Clerk’s within Oakland County that as long as our purchase 



  

 
       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       January 3, 2005      Page 12 

 

is within the guidelines, there will be no matching cost to the Township. 
 
Mr. Cash made a motion to adopt the resolution for the election equipment, 2005-01.  Ms. Carcone  
supported the motion. 
 
Mr. Young asked if there was any discussion regarding the motion.  Mr. Hicks stated that by the 
next election, in four years, the Township will probably have another precinct.  Ms. Johnson stated 
that they have five machines now and out of this grant money they will have to accommodate 
for the fifth one.  She noted that they do have the possibility of one or two more precincts in the 
future. 
 
Mr. Young asked if there were any public comments.  There were none. 
 
 Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: Young, Hemker, Johnson, Carcone, Cash, Hicks, Schilling 
    Nays: None 
 
 Motion approved. 

 
h.  Non-elected Staff Pay and Contract Employees 
 
Mr. Olson stated that the Board has a memo with recommendations of salary for the staff members 
and contract employees of the Township.  He briefly reviewed his recommendations for the Board. 
 
Mr. Cash made a motion to postpone this issue until the next meeting to allow for further review.   
Mr. Hicks supported the motion. 
 
Mr. Young asked if there were any comments from the Board.  Mr. Schilling stated that it has been 
stated in by past Board members that the Township needs to establish an evaluation system.  He 
stated that he feels that this is something that they need to address. 
 
Mr. Cash stated that his concern is that this started in 1996 where they have tried to rank the pay 
with surrounding communities.  He stated that every year they are not handing out a raise, but 
only a cost of living increase.  He noted that there are a few that are still under the average and 
there are some that are close to the average.  He stated that he does not feel that they should 
be paying over the average until the get everybody up to the average. 
 
Mr. Hicks stated that he has some concerns.  He stated that he has heard many compliments  
about the office staff and felt that they are doing a great job.  He stated that he does not see 
what an evaluation program would do for somebody who is above the average.  He stated that 
with regard to the Fire Chief, he would like to see the Board consider giving him a car allowance. 
 
Mr. Young stated that what they need to do is if anybody has any problems or questions with this 
proposal, he would encourage them to get together with Chris Olson between now and the next 
meeting to address the issue.  He complimented Mr. Olson on the wonderful job that he did in 
putting the recommendation together. 
 
 Voice Vote:  Ayes: All 
    Nays: None 
 
 Motion approved. 
 
i.  12.1 Zoning Ordinance - Discussion 
 
Mr. Schilling stated that Chris Olson put together a very detailed document that addresses the 



  

 
       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       January 3, 2005      Page 13 

 

Copperwood development with regard to Section 12.1 of the Zoning Ordinance.   
 
Mr. Schilling made a motion to instruct Administration to investigate an ordinance amendment to 
Section 12.1 of the Zoning Ordinance.  Mr. Hemker supported the motion. 
 
Mr. Young asked if there are any comments.  Mr. Olson stated that in the ordinance passed in 1991 
does allow people to begin grading their property prior to approval provided they get a permit, 
approval from the Engineer and that the Building Official signs off on it.  He stated that what they 
are looking for is an ordinance that would not allow people to grade property until they actually 
have approved development plans by the Township.  He stated that in other words, they are  
looking for a repeal of 12.1. 
 
Mr. Young stated that he feels that they are asking for an amendment and that research is going 

to 
reveal the best way to handle the situation.  Mr. Schilling stated that his intention is for  
administration to research this. 
 
Mr. Cash stated that he is not opposed to reviewing some new documentation on this.  He stated  
that it hadn’t been a problem until this one case where there is more to it than just the grading.  He 
stated that if he owns land and wants to move some dirt on the land, not to build a subdivision, 

and 
gets the proper permits, is he going to be told that he has to have a site plan?  Mr. Olson stated  
that this is why he is asking questions so that he can make sure he knows what the Board’s  
intentions are.  He stated that there is a confusion factor with people starting work early.  After 
further brief discussion, Mr. Young asked if there were any public comments.  There were none. 
 
 Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: Cash, Young, Johnson, Schilling, Carcone, Hicks, Hemker 
    Nays: None 
 
 Motion approved. 

 
j.  Library Update 
 
John Bell gave a brief update on the happenings of the Library. 

 
11. ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA FOR ACTION OR DISCUSSION    
 
 Meeting Minutes from the December 6, 2004 Meeting 
 
 Ms. Carcone made a motion to remove the minutes of December 6, 2004 and not approve them, 

to have brought back at the next regular meeting.  Mr. Cash supported the motion. 
 
  Voice Vote:  Ayes: All 
     Nays: None 
 
  Motion approved. 
 
12. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Ms. Carcone made a motion to adjourn the meeting.  Mr. Schilling supported the motion. 
 
  Voice Vote:  Ayes: All 
     Nays: None 
 



  

 
       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       January 3, 2005      Page 14 

 

Motion approved.  The meeting was adjourned at 9:27 PM. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 

Deby Cothery 
 
Deby Cothery                                            Pamela Johnson    
Recording Secretary                                                      Clerk    
 
 


